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NZICA’S MISSION
to Enable our
members to
excel in the
accounting
profession
and be trusted
leaders in the
wider business
community.

The New Zealand Institute of
Chartered Accountants (NZICA)
was established in 1908 as the then
New Zealand Society of Accountants.

Within these prescribed functions NZICA:

It operates under the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Act
1996 (renamed on 7 July 2010 from the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of New Zealand Act 1996). The Act formalises NZICA’s role as a regulatory
body with responsibility for the profession in New Zealand. In general terms,
the Act prescribes the role of NZICA in regulating its members’ activities and
conduct in the public interest.

• promotes the Chartered Accountant, Associate Chartered Accountant and Accounting Technician brands

Functions
The functions of NZICA as described in Section 5 of the Act are:
• to promote quality, expertise and integrity in the profession of
accountancy by its members in New Zealand

• develops and promulgates ethical rules, professional standards and related guidance
• develops national financial reporting standards and contributes to the development of international financial
reporting and professional and ethical standards
• provides quality assurance services to members
• provides strong input to the international accounting community, including through the International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) and the Global Accounting Alliance (GAA)
• provides networking, career and practice development opportunities
• promotes public policy through development of submissions to Government on issues of importance to its members
and the wider business community
• provides professional education and information services to members.
NZICA operates under a culture of placing public interest before member interest.

• to promote, control and regulate the profession of accountancy by its
members in New Zealand
• to promote the training, education and examination of persons
practising, or intending to practise, the profession
of accountancy in New Zealand or elsewhere
• any other functions that are conferred on it by NZICA’s Rules.
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KAMALA BAIN, BUSINESS INFORMATION LIBRARIAN
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT
Values first
As we look back on 2009–10 we can see the establishment of key values at the core of the New Zealand Institute of
Chartered Accountants that I believe represent the very best of our profession.
Trust, excellence and courage are the values embraced by the new Council, Board and Executive Management Team.
It is these values that will guide us as we seek to fulfil the new mission statement adopted during the year: to enable
our members to excel in the accounting profession and be trusted leaders in the wider business community.
Strategy
I am very proud of the way the new Council has settled into its role and provided strong oversight of the new strategic plan.
I look forward to seeing the plan roll out and improve service to members over coming years.
Many Councillors have worked unselfishly towards a new structure with a reduced number of Councillors (down to 25 from 41).
Their willingness to put NZICA first has not gone unnoticed.
I would like to acknowledge those who have been invovled in the developments and thank them for their contributions.
The 2009 Council did a magnificent job leading NZICA through a massive period of organisational change and into the
new governance regime. Thank you in particular to the outgoing president Linda Turner FCA, who helped drive these
changes through.

One of the benefits of the new governance regime is role clarity. I’m happy
to say that the new Council is acquitting itself well in its focus on strategic
issues. I would also like to acknowledge how well the new Board is working
and say what a great milestone this new strategy is.
I would like to thank Ross Jackson FCA for his invaluable support as our
Vice President, and Graham Crombie FCA, NZICA’s inaugural Board
Chairman, for a job well done.
I would also like to acknowledge the good work of our outstanding Chief
Executive Terry McLaughlin, his Executive Management Team, the staff
of NZICA and of course all our members who give so willingly in a
volunteer capacity.
I have very much enjoyed being President during a period of significant
change for the organisation. The way Council, Board, the Chief Executive,
staff and the membership have adapted to this change has been exemplary.
Thank you.

NZICA’S VALUES
Trust: The NZICA brand is synonymous
with trust. Trust in the collective integrity
of our members is underpinned by our
Code of Ethics: objectivity, independence,
competence, quality performance and
professional conduct are hallmarks of
our members.
Excellence: NZICA strives to embody
excellence in all it does: in leading, in serving
and in supporting the accounting profession
both in New Zealand and internationally.
Courage: Courage to innovate, courage
to be nimble, courage to act in the public
interest. Courage to take the lead.

DINU HARRY FCA
NZICA PRESIDENT
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BOARD CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
On board
One of the most encouraging things about 2009–10 is the quality of the Board members who have come on under the new
governance arrangements.

May also saw a visit by Professor Arnold Schilder, chairman of the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, to
brief New Zealand’s accounting and auditing leaders and the regulatory community on the latest international developments
in auditing and assurance standards.

Members such as Allan Newman FCA, Neil Paviour-Smith CA, Murray Jack CA, Craig Norgate CA and Elizabeth Hickey FCA bring
a breadth of accounting and business experience that has been invaluable in the development of a strategic plan for NZICA.

That month NZICA hosted UK Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Policy and Technical Director Ian
Carruthers, here to investigate the potential for collaboration between CIPFA and NZICA.

In addition, the business skills of our Board members Hugh Rennie QC and Doug McKay, who are not members of NZICA,
complement and strengthen the ability of the Board to exercise oversight of the execution of the new strategy and business plan.

The quality of NZICA’s qualifications is increasingly recognised internationally, and this was highlighted in August 2009 by the
formal signing of a mutual recognition agreement with the United States International Qualifications Board.

I would like to thank all the current members, including ex officios President Dinu Harry FCA, Vice President Ross Jackson FCA
and Chief Executive Terry McLaughlin FCA, for the way they have come together quickly and established the new Board as
one of NZICA’s key assets.

This quality of our membership was recognised closer to home when Auckland University Professor Steven Cahan FCA was
made a life member of the Accounting and Finance Association of Australia and New Zealand (AFAANZ) at its conference
in July 2010.

In particular, I’d like to thank them for supporting a significant investment in our future.

Work continues

The new strategy, new premises in Auckland and Wellington, and programme of technology upgrades this year are each vital
in ensuring NZICA is a leading corporate and member organisation.

We have made great progress with Fit for the Future 2, the second phase of our governance review which looked at NZICA’s
boards and committees. I’d like to offer special acknowledgement to those members who contributed feedback during this
review. These changes will make us stronger and more responsive to members’ needs in the future.

International vision
A major focus for the Board in 2009–10 has been developing a collaboration with the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia (ICAA).

In 2011 we will progress with Fit for the Future 3 to ensure the best possible service delivery to, and engagement with, members.

Work towards this collaboration proceeded well, and the joint Board meeting in June 2010 saw the formation of the
Chartered Accountants of Australia New Zealand (CAANZ) Board, comprising the ICAA President, the NZICA Chairman, Board
Directors from each institute and the two chief executives.
This is an important step towards the two institutes taking a leadership role in the trans-Tasman economic space.
The collaboration focuses on four key areas:
• the Chartered Accountant qualifying programme
• products and services
• marketing
• information technology.
Both ICAA and NZICA are members of the Global Accounting Alliance.
International leadership
In May, NZICA hosted the Confederation of Asian and Pacific Accountants (CAPA) annual general meeting, at which
Keith Wedlock FCA was elected deputy president of CAPA.
I would like to extend my congratulations to Keith, who is expected to become CAPA president for 2012 and 2013. He joins
a growing number of NZICA members playing key roles in international accounting organisations, including Ian Ball FCA
(IFAC chief executive) and Warren Allen FCA (IFAC Board member).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
Highlights of 2009–10
New direction	

Investment for the future – excellence

The development and adoption of a strategic plan to guide NZICA over
the next five years.

This has been a year that will have a major impact on the development of NZICA.

Investment in the future	 The opening of new premises in Auckland and Wellington.

It was a year of investment in governance, infrastructure, planning and people – and I am pleased to report we have taken
major strides forward in each of these areas.

Strong governance	

The appointment and successful establishment of a new Board and Council.

The key achievement was the sign off of a five-year strategic plan and associated business plan.  This followed on from the
successful bedding-in of a new governance structure.

International vision	

The development of a collaboration initiative with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia (ICAA).

Growing numbers	

NZICA remains the accounting body of choice with membership up 3%
from a year earlier to 32,536.

Our new Board and Council have come together well, and the strategy they have signed off establishes a clear path for
NZICA.  This in turn has flowed through to the development of the 2010–11 business plan, which is focussed on delivering
value to members through improved business efficiency and innovative products and services.
We are making considerable investment in our information technology (IT) infrastructure, which will take us to being a technology
leader. Members have already seen some of the benefits of this through the offering of professional development webinars,
the Events Online system, Online CPD log and the streamlined annual billing process. Our investment in developing a new
website is key to future member engagement and delivering first-class products and services.
Another key investment was new premises in Wellington and Auckland, which are high quality facilities for members.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

These will allow NZICA to host members in contemporary comfort at events such as membership ceremonies, networking
evenings and professional development.

For the year ended 30 June 2010
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Revenue

Regulatory change – courage
Note

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

1

28,677

28,692

33,299

33,770

27,337

28,877

31,731

33,325

1,340

(185)

1,568

445

-

225

-

(2)

1,340

40

1,568

443

Total expenses

Surplus/(deficit) before income tax

Income tax benefit/(expense)

4

Surplus after income tax
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Changes announced by the Government will bring the regulation and oversight of the accounting profession in
New Zealand into closer alignment with other OECD jurisdictions.
The changes present opportunities for NZICA to offer advice and services to our members.
Changes to the financial reporting framework will mean the majority of New Zealand companies will no longer have
to report. However, they will still seek finanical advice from their Chartered Accountant and require the preparation of
information vital to understanding their businesses. This is an exciting prospect and one we will discuss with members
in more detail over the coming year.
Accounting standard setting is to move from NZICA to the External Reporting Board (XRB) from mid-2011.
The proposed auditor oversight regime under the new Financial Markets Authority (FMA) will have an impact on members.  
The FMA will be responsible for enforcing securities, financial reporting, company laws and auditor oversight and is expected
to begin operations early in 2011.
There has been significant work behind the scenes advising the Government on the regulatory changes and working towards
an appropriate balance between the interests of our members and goals of the Government.
A significant compliment to the standards of professionalism set by NZICA is the wide exemption granted to members under
the new financial advisers legislation. This recognises that our own Financial Advisory Engagements Standard and review
procedures are already sufficiently robust.
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Engaging with Government is an unseen part of NZICA’s work that has been incredibly time consuming and rewarding.
This advisory work extends to the tax arena, where NZICA has been assisting the Government to work through the practical
implications of some of the changes announced in the 2010 Budget – changes to the depreciation regime, company reporting
and the rise in rate of the goods and services tax key among them.
Our tax team also contributed to a paper on simplifying the reporting requirements for small to medium enterprises,
which was not without controversy.  Our input has been welcomed by Government, and we may have influence on future
tax arrangements.

to produce a higher than budgeted surplus; however, an element of this was due
to NZICA not delivering against all of our planned marketing initiatives. Employee
costs have increased over the past year as we have progressively worked through
organisational change in order for NZICA to have the right capability to deliver our
strategy moving forward.

FIVE-YEAR
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES

As we achieve our strategic plan, members can expect NZICA to be:

1.	Relevant products and services

• developing new products and services, eg audit publications, reporting
guidelines for SMEs and a wide range of professional development tools

Protecting the brand – trust

• developing flexible and international qualifications

2. Qualifications that are
flexible and international

One of NZICA’s key roles has been regulating, and protecting the reputation of, members.  Strains on the economy and
increased media scrutiny during the past year brought a significant number of challenges.  I am pleased to report our
disciplinary and review teams have performed very well.

• promoting and growing our membership, particularly generating interest in
secondary schools and tertiary institutions

3.	Membership growth

The Practice Review team faced a number of extremely complex cases of quite a different tenor to previous years and
performed with integrity. Professional Conduct also performed well, upholding the standards expected by members and the
public in the face of a difficult workload.

• working with Government on co-regulation

Financial Performance
I am pleased to report that, while undertaking significant preparation for the future, NZICA has managed to achieve a surplus
of $1.568m, which is a welcome “war chest” as we move to implement the strategic plan.
Revenue was down slightly over the previous year due to lower interest income and reduced professional development and
other commercial activity. However, core membership revenues have held up against projections. On the other hand, we have
had strong efforts to contain costs overall and to deliver efficiencies in areas such as travel and printing. This has enabled us

• ensuring a stream of quality graduates are entering the profession

4. Co-regulation

• expanding our international leadership.

5.	Regional alliance/power base

Thank you

6.	International leadership

This has been a period of significant change, and I’d like to acknowledge the
professionalism of everyone who has worked with this change.

7. Exemplar SME

The new Executive Management Team has some great talent, and I’d like to thank
them and our staff for the work they have done on strategy development and on
turning strategy into a sound business plan.

8.	Performance culture

TERRY McLAUGHLIN FCA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM
Director – Information Technology

ALLISTAIR KOHING

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TERRY McLAUGHLIN FCA
General Manager – Member Services and Support

KEVIN MARLOW

Director – Human Resources

JEANA ABBOTT

Acting General Manager – Standards and Advocacy

PATRICIA McBRIDE CA

General Manager – Chartered Accountant Programme AND Admissions

BRUCE BENNETT FCA

General Manager – Sales, Marketing and Communications

HELEN MEXTED

Director – GOVERNANCE

ANDROULA DOMETAKIS CA
General Manager – Compliance, Quality and General Counsel

RICHARD MOON

General Manager – PREADMISSIONS PROGRAMME (PREP)

PHILIP KEELING AT

Chief Financial Officer

ARUN PATEL CA
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OUR YEAR
member services first
AN Integrated approach
Combining NZICA’s branch network with a range of direct-to-member services from our national office, a new Member
Services and Support division was formed in mid-2009. During the year, the division grew to include the Business Services and
Continuing Professional Development teams.
The branch network was reviewed, and a consistent regional model for New Zealand branches was introduced, re-establishing
the Midland Region and establishing a Southern Region to complement the existing Northern and Central regions. Regional
offices are now based in Auckland, Hamilton, Wellington and Christchurch to coordinate services to all New Zealand branches.
THE Continuing Professional Development turnaround
The Continuing Professional Development (CPD) programme had been delivered through local branches and a national
programme; the two have now been integrated.
The result has been enhanced by the new Events Online system, a website where members can now easily view a rolling
eight-month calendar of events, filter the schedule by branch location or topic, and register and pay online. Also introduced
this year was the Online CPD Log, which provides members with a tool to keep track of and report their continuing
professional development hours.
The combination of the integrated programme and the Events Online system has contributed to a significant financial
turnaround for the CPD programme, with last year’s substantial losses converted to a satisfactory surplus this year.
In conjunction with this turnaround for traditional “face-to-face” events, a dedicated e-Learning manager was added to the
team and introduced a successful e-Learning programme that delivered scheduled webinars (Live Online) for the first time,
starting with a very popular audit series. Members’ interest in the sessions to date has exceeded expectations, consistently
attracting high satisfaction ratings. The e-Learning programme will be extended in the coming year, with a broader range of
events on offer and the introduction of flexible and interactive e-Learning (On Demand) in 2011.
A transformed Customer Service Centre
The Member Services area has strengthened its focus on customer service and improved access for members by transforming
the former registry services help desk into a new Customer Service Centre (CSC).
A national toll-free number (0800 4 NZICA) was introduced to provide free calling access for members outside Wellington.
Moving against the current automated trends to ensure a human touch, NZICA has returned to having CSC staff answer calls
directly. Recorded messages are now only used when all available staff are busy on calls. These steps achieved immediate
improvements, with increased customer satisfaction and significant reductions in call answer times and abandoned call rates.

THESE STEPS ACHIEVED
IMMEDIATE IMPROVEMENTS,
WITH INCREASED CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION AND
SIGNIFICANT REDUCTIONS
IN CALL ANSWER TIMES
LINA LIEW, ADVISOR – MEMBERSHIP
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MEMBERS – OUR YEAR
JONO BREDIN
Chartered Accountant
Head of Tax
Keogh McCormack Ltd
2010 has been a stand-out year for Jono Bredin
CA, having been recruited specifically to lead the
direction and growth of the Keogh McCormack
Ltd chartered accountancy tax team.
“This year has been the culmination of a
couple of years of hard work upskilling to give
maximum value to clients,” says Jono.
“With all the changes this year, tax is a really
interesting place to be, and it’s great to be able
to help people. I enjoy the challenge of working
proactively with businesses, mums and dads to
unlock opportunities and potential.”
In addition to his tax work at Keogh McCormack,
Jono spends his time as an international netball
umpire. This takes him to high-profile matches
around the globe, officiating in tournaments
such as the ANZ Championship.
He recently returned from umpiring the
Australia v Jamaica series and when interviewed
was preparing for the Commonwealth Games
in Delhi, where he will officiate.
Jono, 25, has been a finalist for two years in a
row at the NZICA Leadership Awards, and has
also been a facilitator for Advanced Business
Education Limited’s (now PREP) Professional
Competence programme. He is also a member
of NZICA’s Otago Branch Committee and has
delivered a national CPD training course.
Jono has a bachelor’s degree in commerce
and a certificate in sports studies from the
University of Otago. His wife, Marise, currently
studies medicine there. The couple enjoy
keeping fit, spending time in the outdoors and
travelling the world in their free time.
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OUR YEAR
Investment in excellence
Enhancements online
A key achievement this year has been designing NZICA’s new website at nzica.com (for delivery in late 2010). There have also
been other refinements in the online space.
The NZICA Library Catalogue was upgraded, making the catalogue much easier to search. It now provides immediate online
access to many of the library’s 31,000 publications.
NZICA’s Student Affiliate programme was broadened to include secondary students as well as tertiary students, and the
student Fly Higher website was upgraded to match.
There were also a number of back-office system upgrades achieved this year. A new staff intranet was introduced, and new
modules for budgeting and performance planning were added to our finance system.
A business intelligence and management reporting system was piloted – where there were once four separate reporting
systems, there is now a single SQL-based system to generate reports based on key performance indicators.
Finally, many of the servers we rely on at NZICA to keep member services running were replaced.
Strong Foundations
NZICA’s Professional Competence Programme develops and assesses the professional skills of provisional members seeking
full membership.
Beginning in 2010, the Professional Competence Examination (PCE1) was replaced with the new Foundations programme
which, while continuing its emphasis on professional ethics, now includes wider skill development in communications and
problem solving.
The first sitting of Foundations was undertaken by 675 candidates, and 906 candidates enrolled in the PAS/PCE2 programme,
another record year.
Advanced Business Education Limited (now known as the Preadmissions Programme – PREP) moved from being a whollyowned subsidiary to a division of NZICA.
New premises in Wellington and Auckland
After many years at Cigna House in Wellington, with staff spread across four floors, we moved to new purpose-built offices
and conference centre on two completely refurbished levels in Wellington’s Tower Building on Customhouse Quay.
We were pleased to have staff fully operational for the first day in the new home for our national office and
Wellington Branch.
In Auckland, after two decades at Remuera, we moved to a brand new building at Carlaw Park in Parnell, with
open-plan offices and conference centre facilities built to the same standard and with consistent design approaches
to the Wellington location.
Both the Wellington and Auckland premises are on long-term leases, and each provides superb venues for members
while functionally accommodating branch and national staff. Both conference centres provide high-end technology
for our members.
Both projects were delivered on time and within budget. Our members can be proud of the Wellington and Auckland facilities,
which will serve the needs of our members and NZICA for many years to come.

20
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Our members
can be proud of
the Wellington
and Auckland
facilities, which
will serve the
needs of our
members and
NZICA for many
years to come
NZICA’s new Auckland Premises in Parnell were officially opened in July
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MEMBERS – OUR YEAR
Veronika Duthie-Jung
Accounting Technician
RYOS Retail Ltd
Thomas Dewar Sziranyi Letts
“It’s been a busy year, but it was quite a
rewarding one as well,” says Veronika
Duthie-Jung AT.
This was her first year as a member of the
College of Accounting Technicians, which she
qualified for in October 2009.
She is enthusiastic about the flexibility that the
designation, and the profession, offers. Not only
is her work flexible in terms of part-time hours,
it’s flexible in location as well.
Last year she was able to take both her jobs
with her when she visited Germany and
Denmark for a month. This year she plans on
repeating this when she travels again.
Veronika provides daily accounting support
(“pretty much everything from the bottom up”)
for both RYOS Retail Ltd, which has four online
retail sites and four retail shops in Wellington
and Lower Hutt, and Thomas Dewar Sziranyi
Letts, a Wellington-area law firm specialising in
family law.
At Thomas Dewar, Veronika arrived to start
afresh; the previous employee handling accounts
had been there for 15 years. “I was able to put
quite a few processes in place and improve
month-end reporting, providing partners with
timely information.”
RYOS Retail has seen significant expansion
during Veronika’s time there. “I was able to
grow with the business,” she explains, “because
of my training and my qualification. I was able
to step up.”
This year also brought additional responsibilities,
when she provided holiday cover for two months
at boutique law firm Burrowes & Company.
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OUR YEAR
Navigating the new regulatory landscape
Financial advisers legislation
The Government’s refinement of legislation relating to authorisation and oversight of financial advisers this year became a
tribute to the quality of our admissions and quality assurance processes, and our Financial Advisory Engagement Standard.
Chartered Accountants will be exempt from many of legislation’s provisions if they are providing financial advisory services in
the ordinary course of their business.
A further broad exemption was also made available for members when their financial advice is provided only as an incidental
part of another business.
We are continuing to consult with members concerning the practical application of this new regime.
Standard setting
NZICA was a leader in encouraging the Government to review the structure for setting standards in New Zealand and the
range of entities that are required by legislation to prepare statutory financial statements.
NZICA provided staff support to the Ministry of Economic Development (MED) in developing the thinking underpinning the
proposals as to which entities should prepare financial statements.
If the MED proposals are proceeded with, many companies will no longer have to prepare statutory financial statements,
leaving them more time to run their businesses and potentially seek different types of services from NZICA members.
We expect to see the enabling legislation during the 2011–12 year.
NZICA also supported the transfer of financial reporting, and auditing and assurance, standards to a reconstituted
Accounting Standard Review Board. Stepping back from this regulatory role will enable us to increase our services to
members in standards implementation, including support tools and additional professional development. During the
forthcoming year, NZICA will consider the best way to continue to set high quality professional standards other than
auditing and assurance standards.
Auditor oversight
The Government’s proposals to introduce auditor oversight with respect to work performed for issuers found support at
NZICA. While we will retain a front-line regulatory role, this will be overseen by the proposed Financial Markets Authority
(FMA), enhancing audit quality in relation to issuers and facilitating greater international recognition of the New Zealand
audit profession.
Our members will be consulted extensively once the proposed legislation is introduced, and we are developing the necessary
processes to support the transition over the next year or so. This includes establishing an auditor registration board for our
members and enhancing practice review together with the FMA.

we have worked
to ensure that
relevant international
developments, especially
the financial reporting,
auditing and assurance
and ethics standards,
are fit for use in
New Zealand
CHRIS NEAME, PROJECT MANAGER – ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
CLIVE BRODIE, SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER – ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
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OUR YEAR
Respected advocates
Shaping tax policy
The tax team has continued to work closely with tax policy officials at Inland Revenue and the Treasury, and is regularly
approached for input into New Zealand’s tax policy design.
We also raised tax operational issues with Inland Revenue that our members face in their everyday dealings with the department.
Highlights include work with the New Zealand Law Society on reforming the tax disputes process, and securing an extension of
the six month beneficiary income rule under Section HC 6 of the Income Tax Act.
Our draft position paper, Simplifying the Taxation of Small Business in New Zealand (issued jointly with Tax Management
New Zealand Ltd) tackled taxation compliance costs for micro and small businesses. The proposals led to a significant number
of submissions from members and others, and we are in the process of revising the paper in light of those comments.

The tax team has
continued to work
closely with tax
policy officials
at Inland Revenue
and the Treasury,
and is regularly
approached for input
into New Zealand’s
tax policy design

Advocacy at home and abroad
Continuing our pursuit of opportunities to improve New Zealand regulation, we have been monitoring closely the
relevant activities of many regulators, including the Securities Commission, and contributing our members’ views through
various channels.
NZICA has been closely involved with, and commented on, the prudential supervision developments at the Reserve Bank.
We were also invited to participate in a consultative forum to examine the key issues and appropriate design features for a
Regulatory Responsibility Act.
On the global scene, we have worked to ensure that relevant international developments, especially the financial reporting,
auditing and assurance, and ethics standards, are fit for use in New Zealand, and that New Zealand entities and our members
are appropriately fitted to operate internationally if they wish to do so.
NZICA has also been leading a project as part of the Global Accounting Alliance thought leadership programme to develop a
framework for improving the decision-making and governance of international standard setters.

CRAIG MACALISTER ca, TAX DIRECTOR
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MEMBERS – OUR YEAR
Hinerangi Raumati-Tu’ua
Chartered accountant
Acting Director of Operations,
Te Wananga o Aotearoa
After seven years as Tainui Group Holdings’
chief financial officer, Hinerangi Raumati-Tu’ua
CA resigned in October 2009 and began a year
of change.
That same month she was accepted into the
Fonterra Governance Development Programme,
which included two three-day conferences and
a five-day Institute of Directors course.
She was treated to quality time with top
Fonterra executives as they covered the most
relevant governance issues of the day in such
settings as Mellon’s Folly, the replica Western
town an hour’s drive from Whanganui.
“For me, after leaving TGH, that was a great change
of scene,” she says, “a refreshing thing to do.”
Her governance roles span multiple organisations.
She sits on the Board of Parininihi Ki Waitotara
Inc, a Maori incorporation that owns 20,000
hectares in Taranaki and produces 2.2 million
kilograms of milk solids each year. She is also a
board member of Te Ohu Kai Moana, Te Rua o
Te Moko and the Nga Miro Health Centre.
In November last year, Hinerangi was appointed
to the Board of the Public Trust, which is
currently repositioning itself in these financially
turbulent times.
“It’s a complicated business. For me it’s about
learning the business model and getting to
know the Executive Team and Board. It’s my
first appointment to a Crown entity, too, and
the relationship with the Minister and the new
Government is really interesting.”
In addition to her governance roles, this year has
seen Hinerangi expand her consultancy practice
and take on a temporary role as Acting Director
of Operations at Te Wananga o Aotearoa, the
nation’s second largest tertiary institution.
If all these developments were not enough,
Hinerangi had a personal highlight this year as
well: she was married last December.
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OUR YEAR
ENHANCING the brand
The quality assurance teams
One of NZICA’s core functions under its Act is to regulate the profession of accountancy by its members, thereby supporting
the public interest and ensuring the high standing of its designations.
Maintaining and, where possible, enhancing the status of the Chartered Accountant brand is a particular focus. This year our
Practice Review, Professional Support and Professional Conduct teams all made important contributions in this area.
Increasingly, NZICA is taking a broader, risk-based approach to its regulatory functions, which has contributed to an increase
in special investigations and interim suspensions.
This year Practice Review closed fewer files than the year before; however, a number of the reviews undertaken were complex
and more comprehensive than in previous years. Professional Support inquiries increased considerably, which no doubt partly
reflects the increasing complexity of the environment in which members practise. NZICA received slightly fewer complaints
against its members this year and was able to resolve 132 during the period, an increase of more than 50% on the previous year.
NZICA also completed its review of finance company audits. In all, the audit work performed in relation to 38 finance
companies was reviewed (some structured within groups). As a result, the work of 10 members was subjected to further
action initiated through NZICA’s Practice Review Board.
Disciplinary Tribunal actions
NZICA’s Disciplinary Tribunal met on nine occasions, considering cases against 23 members.
A particular feature of the cases before the Tribunal was a lack of documented work on audit files. NZICA is planning a series
of communications to members in the new year to reiterate the standards expected in that regard.
Three members were struck off during the year. A number of members were also suspended due to bankruptcy or an order by
the Deputy Registrar of Companies prohibiting them from being a director and promoter of any company.
In several instances throughout the year, NZICA received information suggesting a member’s practice was insolvent, or that
client monies were at risk. In such cases NZICA commenced urgent investigations to determine whether the activities of
the members concerned were putting the public, or the Chartered Accountant brand, at risk. Where appropriate, interim
suspension orders were sought, pending more detailed investigations and responses from the members concerned.

One of NZICA’s core functions
under its Act is to regulate
the profession of accountancy
by its members, THEREBY
SUPPORting the public INTEREST
and ENSURING the high standing
of its designations

Jeremy Kennerley ca, Director – Practice Review
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Richard Boyce, Manager – IT Operations
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GOVERNANCE
GOVERNANCE AT NZICA

Conflicts of interest

The New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants operates under the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Act
1996 (the Act), which formalises NZICA’s role as a regulatory body with responsibility for the profession in New Zealand.

The general principle regarding conflicts of interest is that a member of a governance body must not allow personal interests
or the interests of an associated person to conflict with the interests of NZICA. In other words, a member of a governance
body must not take improper advantage of their position, including use of privileged information, to gain (directly or
indirectly) a personal advantage or an advantage for any associated person, which might cause detriment to NZICA.

In general terms, the Act prescribes the role of NZICA in regulating its members’ activities and conduct in the public interest.

The Rules of NZICA
NZICA’s Rules are a requirement under Section 6 of the Act and are key in regulating NZICA’s governance, quality assurance,
conduct functions and aspects of general operation. The Rules specify policy and procedures around:

The personal interests of members of governance bodies and those of an associated person must not be allowed to prevail
over those of NZICA’s members generally. A member of a governance body should seek to avoid conflicts of interest whenever
possible. Full disclosure of any conflict or potential conflict must be made to NZICA.

• Council, Board and committee operations

If a conflict does arise, a member of a governance body must consider whether to:

• membership categories and requirements

• refrain from participating in the debate and voting on the matter

• conduct

• be absent from discussion of the matter

• public practice

• arrange that the relevant papers are not sent

• practice review

• (in an extreme case) resign from the Council, Board or committee.

• branches
• meetings of members.
Amendments to the Rules are authorised either through member vote at an annual or special general meeting, or by Council
or Board (for some appendices). Policies, procedures and operations of NZICA must be consistent and compliant with the
Rules as applicable.

Effective Governance – Performance expectations
Members of the Council, Board, Nominations and Governance and other committees/boards are expected to meet the
requirements of the Governance Manual and their own obligations to the governance body to which they are elected or
appointed, as well as to comply with NZICA’s Code of Ethics, values and Rules. It is expected that they will discharge their
duties with regard to the following:
• regular and full attendance, and active contribution at meetings
• turnaround of decisions by circular resolution within specified timeframes
• sufficient preparation for meetings, including familiarity with agenda material and background of issues to be raised
• integrity
• objectivity

The Code of Ethics
Section 7 of the Act requires NZICA to “always have a Code of Ethics that governs the professional conduct of its members”.
The Code sets out fundamental principles, and provides guidance on professional conduct, needed to sustain public
confidence in the profession and is a positive point of difference between NZICA members and other accountants.
Compliance is mandatory for all NZICA members, who must be able to demonstrate at all times that their actions, behaviour and
conduct comply with its terms and spirit. Non-compliance with the Code of Ethics may expose a member to disciplinary action.
The Code of Ethics is based on the following five principles:
Integrity

Objectivity and independence	 Members must be fair, impartial and intellectually honest and must not allow prejudice or
bias, conflict of interest or influence of others to override objectivity. Members undertaking
certain types of engagements must be, and be seen to be, independent.
Competence	

Members must only undertake professional work in which they have the competence
necessary to perform the work to the technical and professional standards expected.

Quality performance	

Members must perform their professional work with due care and diligence, ensuring
that all professional obligations are completed in a timely manner and carried out
in accordance with the relevant technical and professional standards appropriate to
that work.

Professional behaviour

Members must act in a manner consistent with the good reputation of the profession
and refrain from any conduct which might bring discredit to the profession.

• independence and recognition of situations where conflicts of interest must be disclosed
• confidentiality of deliberations and decisions.

Indemnity
All members of NZICA’s governance bodies are fully indemnified by NZICA against all costs, expenses and liability incurred in
the due conduct of duties or engagement, unless incurred as a result of a wilful act, default or neglect.
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GOVERNANCE
The NZICA Board

Board subcommittees

The functions of the Board are to:
• act as the executive board of NZICA
• develop and approve, with the Council, NZICA’s strategic plan
• be responsible for developing, approving, implementing and monitoring the other strategic and operational plans and
policies of NZICA
• appoint, authorise delegations for, oversee, and direct all permanent bodies, national committees, and other committees,
boards and tribunals of NZICA
• appoint and monitor the performance of the Chief Executive and authorise delegations to the Chief Executive
• be responsible for the financial affairs of NZICA and approve the annual plan and budget
• carry out any other functions that are ancillary to the above or conferred by the Rules.

Audit, Finance AND Risk Management

The Board has a close working relationship with Council and the Chief Executive in carrying out its functions. It meets
approximately eight times a year.
The Board comprises:
• six NZICA members
• two non-NZICA members.

The Board has delegated to the Audit, Finance and Risk Management Committee its responsibilities and role in respect of
audit, finance and risk management.
The committee oversees all aspects of audit, finance and risk management and ensures risks are defined and analysed, and
adequately managed.
Committee members
Hugh Rennie (Chair), Murray Jack CA, Ross Jackson FCA
Member

Meetings

Attended

Hugh Rennie (Chair)

5

5

Murray Jack

5

5

Ross Jackson

5

5

Nominations

The President, the Vice President and Chief Executive are ex-officio members of the Board, with speaking rights, but no voting rights.
The current Board (effective July 2009)
Graham Crombie FCA (Chair), Liz Hickey FCA, Murray Jack CA, Doug McKay, Allan Newman FCA, Craig Norgate CA,
Neil Paviour-Smith CA, Hugh Rennie, Dinu Harry FCA (President, ex officio), Ross Jackson FCA (Vice President, ex officio),
Terry McLaughlin FCA (Chief Executive, ex officio)

The Board has delegated to the Nominations Committee its responsibilities and role in respect of appointments, delegations
and oversight of national committees, and other committees, boards and tribunals of NZICA.
Committee members
Allan Newman FCA (Chair), Graham Crombie FCA, Liz Hickey FCA
Member

Meetings

Attended

Resigned Board members (effective June 2009 as a result of the Fit for Future governance restructure)

Allan Newman (Chair)

1

1

Rosemary Chung CA, Mike Hanaray FCA, Fred Hutchings FCA, Laurie Jordan FCA, David Osborne FCA, Paul Pedofski FCA
and Gary Swift CA

Graham Crombie

1

1

Liz Hickey

1

1

Member

Meetings

Attended

Graham Crombie (Chair)

8

8

Murray Jack

8

6

Doug McKay

8

8

Allan Newman

8

8

Neil Paviour-Smith

8

8

Craig Norgate

8

7

Member

Liz Hickey

8

8

Hugh Rennie

8

6

Linda Turner (President, ex officio) *

4

4

Dinu Harry (President, ex officio) **

8

8

Ross Jackson (Vice President, ex officio)

8

8

Terry McLaughlin (Chief Executive, ex officio)

8

8

Remuneration
The Board has delegated to the Remuneration Committee its responsibilities and role in respect of demonstrating to NZICA’s
members and stakeholders that NZICA sets remuneration in a fair and reasonable manner in accordance with objective criteria.
Current committee members
Graham Crombie FCA (Chair), Doug McKay, Craig Norgate CA
Meetings

Attended

Graham Crombie (Chair)

3

3

Doug McKay

3

3

Craig Norgate

3

3

* (end of term November 2009)        ** (beginning of term December 2009)
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BOARD
Neil is a director of New Zealand Exchange Limited (NZX)
and has extensive capital markets experience
Managing Director of Forsyth Barr

Neil Paviour-Smith CA
The inaugural Chairman of the Board, Graham is a
Past President (2008) of NZICA
Partner and CEO of Polson Higgs

Graham Crombie FCA

Non-NZICA member Director
Doug has extensive experience as a director, is a former Chief Executive Officer of
Sealord Group Limited, and former Executive Chairman of Independent Liquor
Chief Executive of Auckland Council

Doug McKay
Alongside three directorships, Liz is an Adjunct Professor of
Accounting at the University of Auckland (part-time)
Company director

Liz Hickey FCA

Non-NZICA member Director
Hugh is a former non-executive chairman of M-Co International Ltd
and former non-executive director of the Bank of New Zealand
Queen’s Counsel at Harbour Chambers (barristers)

Hugh Rennie QC
Murray is a former head of the Deloitte Asia Pacific consulting practice
and brings wide governance experience to the Board
Chief Executive of Deloitte

Ex-officio member of the Board

Murray Jack CA
NZICA President

Dinu Harry FCA
Allan is a a former NZICA Councillor and immediate past Chairman
of the National Public Practice Committee
Director of Sadler Oakly Newman Limited

Ex-officio member of the Board

Allan Newman FCA
NZICA Vice President
Craig is a director of New Zealand Farming Systems Uruguay Limited, Wool
Partners International Limited, Port Taranaki Limited, Aotearoa Fisheries
Limited, Sealord Group Limited and Wool Partners Ltd
Company Director and Investor

Ross Jackson FCA
Ex-officio member of the Board

Craig Norgate CA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TERRY McLAUGHLIN FCA
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GOVERNANCE
The NZICA Council

Peter Schuyt CA	

Councillor, Wellington

NZICA’s Council comprises 19 elected Councillors and up to six appointed Councillors who, in combination, balance branch,
sector, demographic and skills representation. Its functions are to:

Andrew Robinson FCA	

Alternate Councillor, United Kingdom (appointed February 2010)

Alan Sharr CA	

Councillor, Canterbury (retired in April 2010)

• develop and approve NZICA’s long-term strategic intent and governance principles

Murray Taylor ACA	

Councillor, Auckland

• develop and approve, with the Board, NZICA’s strategic plan

Susan Tremlett CA	

Councillor, Auckland

• provide input to the Board on key policy issues that will significantly impact members

Stephen Walker CA	

Councillor, Wellington

• appoint and evaluate the Board and approve remuneration levels for Board members

Craig Wyatt CA	

Councillor, Otago

• appoint and evaluate the Nominations and Governance Committee

GRAHAM CROMBIE FCA	

Ex-officio

• elect the President and Vice President

terry mclaughlin FCA	

Ex-officio

• confer Life Memberships and Fellowships

40

• represent the interests of the membership as a whole

The following Council members resigned at the 2009 AGM as part of the Fit for Future governance restructure:

• carry out any other functions that are ancillary to the above or as conferred by the Rules or the New Zealand Institute of
Chartered Accountants Act 1996.

Rodney Aitken FCA	

Waikato-Bay of Plenty

Jeff Barkwill FCA	

Auckland

2009–2010 Council

Denise Bufton FCA	

Waikato-Bay of Plenty

Rosemary Chung CA	

Auckland

Forde Clarke FCA	

Wellington

Victoria Craig CA	

Wellington

Mike Hanaray FCA	

Waikato-Bay of Plenty

Tim Livingstone FCA	

Auckland

Marin Matulovic CA	

Auckland

Bernard Mazur CA	

Auckland

Linda Turner FCA	

President, Hawke’s Bay (retired November 2009)

Dinu Harry FCA	

President, Auckland (appointed November 2009)

Ross Jackson FCA	

Vice President, Southland (appointed November 2009)

John Apanowicz CA	

Councillor, Wellington

Gavin Austin CA	

Councillor, Northland (retired in March 2010)

Richard Austin CA	

Councillor, Canterbury-Westland

John Bennett FCA	

Councillor, Manawatu

Sharon Cooke FCA	

Councillor, Canterbury-Westland

Gerald Naughton FCA	

Sydney-Melbourne

Richard Dey CA	

Councillor, Waikato-Bay of Plenty

Allan Newman FCA	

Wairarapa

Andrew Dick CA	

Councillor, Auckland

Kevin Newson FCA	

Wellington

Graham Edwards FCA	

Councillor, Hawke’s Bay

David Osborne FCA	

Auckland

Giles Ellis CA	

Councillor, Auckland

Paul Pedofski FCA	

Otago

Grant Ellis CA	

Councillor, Auckland

Craig Roberts ACA	

Wairarapa

Catherine Gillies CA	

Councillor, Gisborne-East Coast

Gary Swift CA	

Auckland

Peter Hanson CA	

Councillor, Sydney-Melbourne

Laurie Jordan FCA	

Councillor, Taranaki

Meeting Date

Ian Leggett FCA	

Councillor, United Kingdom

Don MacKenzie CA	

Councillor, Canterbury (appointed July 2010)

Anne Marett CA	

Councillor, Canterbury

Rex McKinnon FCA	

Councillor, Wanganui

Baubre Murray CA	

Cameron McGregor FCA	 Auckland

Attended

Apologies

11 November 2009

39

3

12 November 2009 (inaugural)

20

0

16 February 2010

24

2

Councillor, Wellington

17 February 2010

22

4

John Murray CA	

Councillor, Marlborough-Nelson

26 April 2010

26

0

Christopher Pool CA	

Councillor, Northland (appointed April 2010)

27 April 2010

24

2
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MEMBERS – OUR YEAR
MURRAY TAYLOR
Associate Chartered Accountant
Northern Region Manager
Fletcher Reinforcing
For Murray Taylor ACA, a member of the NZICA
Council, the past year has brought a shift from
finance roles into an operational and general
management position.
Fletcher Reinforcing supplies steel and mesh
to major infrastructure projects, construction
companies and merchants throughout New
Zealand and the Pacific Islands.
Prior to his current role, Murray spent 11 years
as a crewman on a rescue helicopter. To aid
his transition into general management, this
year Murray took part in Melbourne Business
School’s Transformational Leadership Program.
The programme is aimed at developing leaders
that are more aware of, and in tune with,
their personal leadership style and and are
therefore better able to identify opportunities
to maximise their effectiveness in senior
leadership roles.
“A most interesting part of that program was
working with fellow course participants on our
final project: how do we create the best general
managers?” says Murray.
The project included many hours of research,
interviewing 24 of New Zealand’s top business
professionals, and culminated in a presentation
to Fletcher Building senior executives.
Murray’s term on the NZICA Council has
spanned changes in the governance of the
Institute as a result of Fit for the Future 2.
His own focus on management skills has
informed his contribution to NZICA as the new
governance arrangements have bedded in.
“A highlight for me this year has been seeing the
smooth transition and the way that Council is
working well in conjunction with the Board,”
he says.

42

2010 ANNUAL REPORT New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants

New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants 2010 ANNUAL REPORT

43

NOMINATIONS & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
In its first year, the Nominations and Governance (N&G) Committee has completed:
• the process of recommending appointments for six appointed Councillors
• recommending a process around Board appointments for the 2011 year
• recommending remuneration levels for office bearers and Board members for the 2010 year.
In achieving these outcomes, consideration was given to ensuring there existed a competency framework for Councillors and
Board members, an appropriate balance within each group, an appropriate level of continuity of knowledge, and ensuring
there would commence a rotation cycle for group members.
In addition, N&G started work developing and implementing a performance review framework for office bearers, Council,
the Board and itself. This required ensuring the key governance processes were identified and reviewed. The first step in this
review process has been completed. Inevitably, improvements will be made, enabling this review process to be more robust
and wide reaching. As a result, the governance process will be seen to be adhered to and improved over time.
The membership of N&G has included a significant contribution from Warren Allen, who will be stepping down at the end
of 2010. It is important to especially acknowledge Warren’s contribution as N&G have worked to carry out their obligations.
His significant knowledge from his similar work with the International Federation of Accountants has been invaluable.
The functions of the Nominations and Governance Committee are to:
• identify and recommend candidates to the Council for appointment to the Board and the Council, and liaise with the
Board regarding candidates for permanent bodies and other committees of NZICA

Committee members
Tony Burn FCA (Chair), Nicki Crauford (Chief Executive of the Institute of Directors in NZ), Peter Gulliver CA,
Warren Allen FCA, Dinu Harry FCA, Graham Crombie FCA

Member

Meetings

Attended

Tony Burn (Chair)

6

6

Nicki Crauford

6

6

Peter Gulliver

6

4

Warren Allen

6

6

Linda Turner (President) *

3

2

Dinu Harry (President) **

3

3

Graham Crombie (Board Chairman)

6

6

* (end of term November 2009)          ** (beginning of term December 2009)

• develop a skills matrix, selection criteria, succession plans, codes of conduct, training and any other requirements
for the Board, the Council, permanent bodies and other committees of NZICA
• recommend to Council remuneration levels for Board members
• facilitate the evaluation of the Council, the Board and the Nominations and Governance Committee
• monitor and evaluate governance processes between the Council, the Board, the Executive Management Team and
the Nominations and Governance Committee.

TONY BURN FCA
CHAIR
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FIT FOR THE FUTURE 2
A review of NZICA’s committees and boards.
During 2009 and 2010 the Fit for the Future programme was extended past the high level governance of NZICA to focus on
the suite of 25 national committees and boards. The aim of Fit for the Future 2 was to identify:
• the appropriate range of committees/boards required to meet strategic and business planning objectives
• suitable channels for representation/engagement with NZICA members
• the right resources and processes required to effectively and efficiently operate volunteer committees and boards.
The review applied to most national level committees and boards (however did not cover the Board’s operational committees
(AFRM Committee, Nominations Committee, Remuneration Committee), the Awards Judging Panels, Branch Committees or
Special Interest Groups [as these will be addressed in a later phase]). Review of the conduct and standards bodies was limited
given NZICA’s statutory requirements and the government review of standard setting underway in New Zealand.
Significant consultation was undertaken with stakeholder groups during June/July 2010. This included all current national
committees and board Chairs and members, NZICA branches, Council, Board, and external stakeholders. As a result of this
process the proposals were revised and submitted to the Board for approval on 30 August 2010.
The approved structure removes some existing committees, amends the functions of others, and creates new advisory groups
in appropriate areas. Operational improvements will be made to ensure consistency, clarity and efficiency in committee/board
operations going forward. These will ensure that there are standardised terms of reference, workplans linked to strategy,
evaluation and reporting processes for each body.
In summary, the new structure:
• rationalises the committee/board structure into three clear types of bodies:
– Statutory (as prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand Act 1996), with authorised
decision-making powers
– Committee (may have decision-making powers)
– Advisory Group (representation of key membership groups, providing advice to management with no
decision-making powers)

• combines current admissions-related bodies into one Education Committee responsible for admissions policy
• amends the Practice Review Board to an Advisory Group to provide technical advice and input to practice review cases,
where appropriate
• combines current sectoral and college committees into three Sectoral Advisory Groups (Public Practice, Public Sector and
Corporate Sector) with broad representation from all membership sectors and colleges, demographic and functional areas.
These groups will provide advice to management on a large range of strategic and business planning issues across the
organisation, and incorporate some functions of other existing committees, but have no decision-making powers.
• recognises that Financial Reporting Standards Board and Professional Standards Board functions will be migrated to the
External Reporting Board in 2011 but NZICA will need to retain some residual standard setting functions
• recognises the possible need for an Auditor Registration Committee pending outcomes of an auditor oversight review
• disestablishes the current Sustainable Development Reporting Committee, and Not-for-Profit Sector Advisory Committee
(envisages strengthening linkages with current Special Interest Groups and industry, and revisiting the priority of these
areas in the 2011 strategic review)
• disestablishes the current Publications Committee and Professional Development Committee with functions to be carried
out by management
• retains the Tax Committee as an Advisory Group
• introduces common operating procedures across all bodies to ensure clarity of roles and accountability, and consistent
internal processes.
Transition to the new committee structure is anticipated to be completed by January 2011. In particular this will involve
Rule changes to put the proposals into effect, and appointments to the proposed new bodies. Members are encouraged
to consider becoming involved with these groups which will have an active role in contributing to the direction of NZICA
going forward.

• retains statutory committees and appeals functions
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MEMBERSHIP
17,401

Multiple Selections

30%

20%

0%

62

5%

New Zealand European
Not Specified
Other
Other European

June 2010

448
965
169

10%

June 2009

6,967

25%

3,310

3,375

1,171
25

June 2010

Middle Eastern

35%

15%

515

2,691
816

1,288

557

28

3,359

Provisional Chartered Accountant

40%

1,113
264
32
901

Provisional Accounting Technician

Maori

55

Provisional Associate Chartered Accountant

Indian

45%

448
966
164

(in practice with an NZICA member)

Asian

7,656

Non Member Principal

African

50%

3,464

Chartered Accountant

While NZ European category
remains the largest ethnic
group, it fell slightly from
2009 while total membership
numbers grew.

55%

1,154
259
33
929

Accounting Technician

60%

CULTURAL DIVERSITY

Percentage of total membership

23,081

23,487

Associate Chartered Accountant

3,020

75%
70%
65%
60%
55%
50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

797

As at June 2010, NZICA
membership stood at 32,536,
up 3% from a year earlier.

Percentage of total membership

Growing numbers

17,450

ETHNIC COMPOSITION

total membership

Pacific Peoples

June 2009

OCCUPATIONAL GROUPS

Not Disclosed

10%

352

436

5%

48

13,015

13,129

Education – Tertiary
Local Government

20%

Non-Profit Organisation

15%

19,255

19,396

June 2010

Not Specified

548
983
693
50
32

Retired (Permanently)

113
436
569
738

1,382
236

517
950
717
64
40

109
442
564
755

1,372

10%

June 2009

0%

June 2009

SOE or Statutory Body
Student
Voluntary/Community Services Work

June 2010
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12,419

Female
13,140

Percentage of total membership

Education – School

25%

250

June 2010

GENDER BALANCE

The rise in the number
of female members was
more than five times
that of males last year,
supporting a trend to a
greater gender balance
among members.

Commerce, Industry, Service

30%

5%

More women in
the profession

Chartered Accountancy Practice

35%

Parenting

0%

65%
60%
55%
50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

Central Government

4,016

4,135

60+

40%

Between jobs

8,863

50–59

The Commerce, Industry and
Service sector remains the
largest employer of NZICA
members, with those in
Chartered Accountancy Practice
the next largest grouping.

4,765

5,432

40–49

4,182

4,232

15%

5,709

20%
4,641

Percentage of total membership

30–39

45%

Where we work

8,862

Under 30

Percentage of total membership

25%

9,135

8,354

8,164

30%

Future in the youth
The under-30 category
grew the most (459 new
members).

9,438

AGE OF MEMBERS

Male

June 2009
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HONOURS

LIFE MEMBERS

Leadership award winners

NZICA’s highest honour is presented
in recognition of professional
achievements and contributions
to the accounting profession.

Three outstanding members were honoured at the Leadership Awards in November 2009.
Leon Wijohn CA	

Outstanding New Member

Warwick Hunt FCA	 Chartered Accountant of the Year
Kevin Brady FCA	

Ten people hold Life Memberships:

Outstanding Service to the Profession

Warren Allen, FCA

Fellowships

Michael Fenton FCA

NZICA presents Fellowships for outstanding contributions to the accountancy profession and/or community service.
Twenty-four members were awarded Fellowships at NZICA’s AGM in November 2009.

Tony Frankham FCA

Auckland Branch
Brian Blake FACA
Roger France FCA
Julia Hoare FCA
Steven Todd FCA
John Waller FCA
Gisborne Branch
Richard Montgomery FCA
Hawkes Bay Branch
John Loughlin FCA

Otago Branch
Michael Turner FCA

Wellington Branch
Neil Cherry FCA
Roy Glass FCA
Wendy McGuinness FCA
Alison Molloy FCA

Southland Branch
Gregory Mulvey FCA

Canterbury–Westland Branch
Richard Ballantyne FCA
Bill Cotton FCA
Fred Hutchings FCA
Guy Pierce FCA
Ray Polson FCA
Trevor Thornton FCA

Sydney Branch
Michael Burton FCA
Professor Kerry Jacobs FCA
United Kingdom Branch
Marion Cowden FCA
Andrew Robinson FCA
Geoffrey Sewell FCA

John Hagen FCA

Warren Allen FCA Senior Partner at Ernst & Young
NZICA’s newest Life Member is a Fellow and Past President. He has served
on and chaired various NZICA boards and committees. In 2001 he was
awarded the Valued Contribution to the Profession Award.
Allen has a distinguished career in the education field. He chaired the NZICA
Education Committee from 1993 to 1996 and was one of several pioneers
of a new education system for New Zealand Chartered Accountants. He is
on the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) education committee
(now the International Accounting Education Standards Board) and also sits
on the IFAC Board.
Allen is a member of NZICA’s inaugural Nominations and Governance Committee.

Frank Devonport FCA
Malcolm McCaw FCA
Athol Mann FCA

James Archibald Valentine FCA

Peter Hays FCA

Born: Timaru, 3 January 1922

Don Trow FCA

Died: Dunedin, 30 December 2009
Late Life Member Jim Valentine CA was an NZICA Past President, an
accountancy exam moderator, and served on the Accounting Research and
Standards Board and the Professional Standards Committee.
He was also a founding member of the Securities Commission and Stock
Exchange Board.  

Honours
Twelve members were recognised in the New Year’s or Queen’s Birthday Honours this year.
Companion of The New Zealand Order of Merit

Member of The New Zealand Order of Merit

Kevin Brady FCA

Warwick Hunt FCA

Alison Paterson FCA

Joanna Perry FCA

Officer of The New Zealand Order of Merit

Peter Charleton CA

Gill Cox FCA

John (Jack) McClean FACA

Bruce Chambers CA

Queen’s Service Medal

Nigel Gould FCA

Murray Compton CA

Pita Alexander CA

David M Emanuel FCA

Education pioneer

Valentine was educated at Otago Boys High School and later Kings High
School where he was dux in his final year. In 1939 he entered Dunedin
chartered accountancy firm WEC Reid & Co where he studied commerce
part-time at the University of Otago. While there, he met his late wife Shirley.
Valentine remained at the firm through a number of name changes (it’s now
Deloitte) until retirement in 1986.
He supported the University of Otago throughout his career, teaching
accounting for 20 years, serving on committees, co-authoring a number of
accounting textbooks, and serving as Chancellor from 1982–1992. As a
result he received an honorary Doctor of Laws degree in 1990.

Member of the Order of Australia
Peter McGovern FCA
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A surplus for strategic investment

For the year ended 30 June 2010

NZICA is in a sound financial position to move forward on its five-year strategic plan.

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

The $1.568m surplus this year has been driven by reduced expenditure in a climate of financial prudence in the face of
economic recession. Other expenses fell 11.3% with control on discretionary costs, such as travel and printing, key elements
in the savings. The reduced costs helped offset lower revenues from professional development courses (9.1%) and interest
income (45.6%) compared to 2009. In addition, some planned expenditure was not undertaken where capability was not
sufficient to ensure the required outputs were delivered.
The need for improved services for members has meant a period of capital expenditure. This year new premises were
completed in Wellington and Auckland. The investment will benefit members for many years to come.
In addition, our information technology capacity has become a high priority capital expenditure area. Investment in this area
will enable us to better support the membership.
It has been significant year of transition for NZICA, with Phase One of Fit for the Future now bedded in and a new strategic
direction set. The ongoing change process has a number of phases yet to be completed which will continue to draw on cash
for capital and new operating requirements.
Our new strategy will enable NZICA to deliver improved service and products to members in a rapidly evolving business
environment. This year’s surplus provides some of the necessary funding to maintain the momentum on the new
strategic direction.

Note

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

1

28,677

28,692

33,299

33,770

Employee benefits

2

11,262

10,651

11,979

11,365

Depreciation

10

651

452

651

452

Amortisation

11

201

204

252

244

Other expenses

3

15,223

17,570

18,849

21,264

27,337

28,877

31,731

33,325

1,340

(185)

1,568

445

-

225

-

(2)

1,340

40

1,568

443

23

(23)

23

(23)

-

-

-

-

23

(23)

23

(23)

1,363

17

1,591

420

Revenue
Expenses

Total expenses

Surplus/(deficit) before income tax

Income tax benefit/(expense)

4

Surplus after income tax

Other comprehensive income
ARUN PATEL CA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Cash flow hedge taken to reserves gain/(loss)
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2010
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ FUNDS

Assets

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Cash and cash equivalents

5

3,826

4,299

4,322

4,909

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Investments

6

6,088

6,045

6,088

6,045

Trade and other receivables

7

1,240

1,810

1,509

1,859

Income tax receivable

8

3

297

9

332

Inventories

9

5

57

15

75

11,162

12,508

11,943

13,220

Parent

Note

Cash flow
hedge reserve

NZICA
members’ funds

Special interest
groups’ funds

Total members’
funds

Balance at 1 July 2008

-

5,399

223

5,622

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

-

73

(33)

40

Other comprehensive income

(23)

-

-

(23)

Total comprehensive income

(23)

73

(33)

17

Balance at 30 June 2009

(23)

5,472

190

5,639

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment

10

6,272

3,244

6,272

3,244

Intangible assets

11

688

241

727

298

Investment in subsidiary

12

250

250

-

-

7,210

3,735

6,999

3,542

18,372

16,243

18,942

16,762

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Balance at 1 July 2009

(23)

5,472

190

5,639

-

1,331

9

1,340

Other comprehensive income

23

-

-

23

Total comprehensive income

23

1,331

9

1,363

Income in advance

-

6,803

199

7,002

Funds held on deposit for subsidiary
Provisions

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Balance at 30 June 2010

17

Group

Liabilities
Trade and other payables and liabilities

13

2,679

2,440

3,014

2,912

Employee benefits

14

981

878

981

878

2,316

2,507

4,895

4,826

21

4,600

4,300

-

-

16

-

456

-

456

10,576

10,581

8,890

9,072

Total current liabilities

Cash flow
hedge reserve

NZICA
members’ funds

Special interest
groups’ funds

Total members’
funds

Balance at 1 July 2008

-

7,024

223

7,247

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

-

476

(33)

443

Total non-current liabilities

Other comprehensive income

(23)

-

-

(23)

Total liabilities

Total comprehensive income

(23)

476

(33)

420

Balance at 30 June 2009

(23)

7,500

190

7,667

Trade and other payables and liabilities

13

769

-

769

-

Employee benefits

14

25

23

25

23

794

23

794

23

11,370

10,604

9,684

9,095

-

(23)

-

(23)

6,803

5,472

9,059

7,500

199

190

199

190

7,002

5,639

9,258

7,667

18,372

16,243

18,942

16,762

Members’ funds
Cash flow hedge reserve
NZICA members’ funds

Balance at 1 July 2009

(23)

7,500

190

7,667

-

1,559

9

1,568

Other comprehensive income

23

-

-

23

Total comprehensive income

23

1,559

9

1,591

-

9,059

199

9,258

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Balance at 30 June 2010

17

Special interest groups’ funds
Total members’ funds

17

Total members’ funds and liabilities

For and on behalf of the Board

Graham Crombie FCA – Chair
Date: 11 October 2010
The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Hugh Rennie QC – Director
Date: 11 October 2010

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2010
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Significant accounting policies

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from subscription and application fees

19,423

18,738

19,423

18,738

Cash receipts from professional development

3,332

3,891

8,510

9,224

Cash receipts from other

5,260

5,257

5,260

5,257

Cash paid to suppliers

(14,814)

(18,381)

(18,737)

(21,815)

Cash paid to employees

(10,441)

(9,818)

(10,958)

(10,532)

Interest received

423

901

612

1,122

Income tax received

294

-

322

58

-

225

-

-

(213)

(113)

(247)

(98)

3,264

700

4,185

1,954

Payment for losses from subsidiary
Net goods and services tax (paid)/refunded
Net cash flows from operating activities

18

(a) Reporting entity
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand (NZICA) is a statutory entity constituted under the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of New Zealand Act 1996. NZICA is domiciled in New Zealand and its principal place of business
is its national office at 50 Customhouse Quay, Wellington. As a professional body, it promotes quality, expertise and
integrity in the accounting profession. The New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants was the operating name
for the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand to 30 June 2010. On 7 July 2010 the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand Act 1996 was amended so the legal name for NZICA was changed to the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants. NZICA represents the interests of members of the accounting profession working in
New Zealand and around the world. Its aim is to uphold the highest level of responsibility and trust that are vested in the
profession, by providing appropriate standards, policies and services to support members in their work.
Financial statements are presented for the Parent and Group. The financial statements of the Parent comprise NZICA’s
national office and all branches. The Group financial statements comprise the Parent entity, and its subsidiary, Advanced
Business Education Limited (ABEL).
NZICA is a public benefit entity, as defined under NZ IAS 1.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 11 October 2010.
(b) Statement of compliance

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from maturity of investments

27,006

19,999

27,006

19,999

4,100

2,000

-

-

(4,318)

(2,300)

(4,318)

(2,300)

(399)

(207)

(434)

(226)

(27,051)

(17,048)

(27,051)

(17,048)

700

-

-

-

Return of investment funds to subsidiary

(3,800)

(1,000)

-

-

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

(3,762)

1,444

(4,797)

425

Deposits received from subsidiary
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of investments
Dividend received

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Net foreign exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

5

(498)

2,144

(612)

2,379

25

(23)

25

(23)

4,299

2,178

4,909

2,553

3,826

4,299

4,322

4,909

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand
(NZ GAAP). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), and
other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities.
(c) Basis of preparation
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars (NZD), which is the functional and presentation currency
of NZICA, rounded to the nearest thousand. The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.
The accounting policies, except as outlined below under new accounting standards and interpretations, have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. Any exceptions are outlined under part (v) of these
accounting policies for new accounting policies and interpretations.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of NZ IFRS that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 26.
(d) Basis for consolidation
SUBSIDIARY
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by NZICA. Control exists when NZICA has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of the subsidiary are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control starts until the date that control ends.

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of ABEL, the wholly owned subsidiary, are included in the Group financial statements.
The functional currency of ABEL is New Zealand dollars. All accounting policies are applied consistently across the Group.
Corresponding assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are added together on a line by line basis. All significant
inter-entity transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. In the Parent financial statements the investment in ABEL
is stated at cost. Both entities share a 30 June balance date.
(e) Foreign currency
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance date are translated to NZD at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the surplus or
deficit unless the relevant instrument is designated in a hedge relationship (refer (t) below).

SOFTWARE
Software applications that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation of assets which are constructed or developed over a period of time does not commence until the
asset is available for use.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Research costs
Research costs are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit when incurred.
Development costs
ABEL incurs development costs as part of ongoing improvement to the assessment of professional competency for
intending members of NZICA. Development expenditure in relation to new or improved services and products is
recognised as an asset. This is stated at cost and amortised over the period of expected benefits in a manner consistent
with the consumption of benefits, not exceeding five years. All other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the surplus or deficit as incurred.

• computer equipment

SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE

• equipment general

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the service potential or future economic
benefits embodied in the related specific asset. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred through the surplus or deficit.

(f) Property, plant and equipment
CLASSES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

• furniture and fittings
• leasehold alterations

AMORTISATION

• library

Amortisation is charged to the surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets. Intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows.

• motor vehicles.
OWNED ASSETS
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Type of asset

Estimated life

• Software

3 to 5 years

DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is disposed of, the gain or loss recognised in the surplus or deficit is
calculated as the difference between the net sales price and the carrying amount of the asset.

• Development costs

5 years

SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE
Subsequent costs are added to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment when that cost is
incurred if it is probable that the service potential or future economic benefits embodied within the new item will flow to
the Group. All other costs are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation is charged to the surplus or deficit using the straight-line method. Depreciation is set at rates that will writeoff the cost of the assets, less their estimated residual values, over their useful lives (or for leasehold alteration assets, the
shorter of useful lives and the term of the lease). The estimated useful lives of major classes of assets are as follows.
Class of asset

Estimated life

• Computer equipment

3 to 5 years

• Equipment general

3 to 5 years

• Furniture and fittings

10 years

• Leasehold alterations

5 to 13 years

• Library

6 to 7 years

• Motor vehicles

4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value of assets are reassessed at balance date. Depreciation of assets
which are constructed or developed over a period of time does not commence until the asset is available for use.
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(g) Intangible assets
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(h) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less impairment losses. Impairment of receivables past due is established on individual
assessment of receivables. The likelihood of recoverability is based on correspondence, existence of payment plans and
historical loss experience. Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified. We consider trade and
other receivables to be impaired when they exceed 90 days and debts considered to be uncollectible are written off.
(i) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost is based on a first in first out basis.
(j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and deposits with a maturity of no more than three
months from the date of inception.
(k) Investments
Investments comprise fixed term deposits with registered banks. All investments have a maturity date of greater than
three months at inception and are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less impairment.
(l) Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated. If the estimated
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the asset is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount and an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
CALCULATION OF RECOVERABLE AMOUNT
The estimated recoverable amount of receivables and investments carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at their original effective interest rate. Receivables with a short duration
are not discounted.
The estimated recoverable amount of other non-financial assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is calculated differently depending on whether an asset generates cash or not. For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
For non-cash-generating assets that are not part of a cash-generating unit, value in use is based on depreciated
replacement cost. For cash-generating assets, value in use is determined by estimating future cash flows from the use
and ultimate disposal of the asset and discounting these to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market rates and the risks specific to the asset.
REVERSALS OF IMPAIRMENT
Impairment losses for non-financial assets are reversed when there is a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Impairment losses for financial assets are reversed when the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised. All impairment losses are reversed
through the surplus or deficit. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.
(m) Employee benefits
ANNUAL LEAVE

The Group is only liable for income tax relating to members’ activities where a clear service or good has been provided.
However, subscription income is not liable for income tax. Also, income tax is payable on any services or goods provided to
non-members and interest revenue earned on investments. Income tax expense is recognised on the operating surplus derived
from these activities, before taxation, adjusted for permanent differences between assessable and accounting income.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Temporary differences relating to the investment in the subsidiary have not been provided for to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at balance date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable surpluses will be available against which the asset can be used. Deferred
tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
(q) Goods and services tax
The Statements of Comprehensive Income and Statements of Cash Flows have been prepared on a goods and services
tax (GST) exclusive basis. All items in the Statement of Financial Position are stated net of GST with the exception of
accounts receivable and payable, which include GST invoiced. Where GST is irrecoverable as an input tax, it is recognised
as part of the related asset or expense.
(r) Revenue recognition
SUBSCRIPTIONS
The Group’s membership subscription year is 1 July to 30 June. Subscriptions are receivable in advance but only those
subscription receipts which are attributable to the current financial year are recognised as revenue.

Annual leave liabilities are short-term obligations and are calculated on an accrual basis at the amount the Group expects
to pay. The Group accrues the obligation for paid absences both when the obligation relates to employees’ past services
and when it accumulates.

PROFESSIONAL COMPETENCY COURSE FEES

LONG SERVICE LEAVE

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group’s net obligation for long service leave is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to
its present value. The discount rate is the market yield on relevant New Zealand government bonds at balance date.

NZICA provides professional development courses for members and non-members. Course fees are receivable in advance
and income is recognised upon delivery of the course.

(n) Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market rates and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.
(o) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.
(p) Income tax
Income tax in the surplus or deficit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
surplus or deficit except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in members’ funds, in which case it is
recognised in members’ funds.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable for previous years.
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ABEL provides competency course programmes for intending members of NZICA. Course fees are receivable in advance
and income is recognised proportionally as the course programme is delivered.

PRACTICE REVIEW FEES
NZICA is responsible for reviewing each member practitioner to ensure that the quality of the practice’s work meets
legislative, financial reporting and professional standards requirements. Income from these reviews is recognised
incrementally as the review progresses.

JOURNAL REVENUE
NZICA produces the Chartered Accountants’ Journal and receives income from advertising and non-member subscriptions.
Advertising revenue is recognised as each edition is published. Non-member subscriptions are receivable
in advance and income is recognised proportionally over the subscription period.
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMME AND SPONSORSHIP
The Partnership Programme allows for businesses, in exchange for marketing and sponsorship funding, to align
themselves with NZICA to provide benefits to the Group and members. All revenue from the Partnership Programme is
used by the Group according to the contractual arrangements of the individual partners. This funding is recognised as
revenue over the period of the programme as specified in the individual contracts.
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OTHER REVENUE-GENERATING ACTIVITIES
Other revenue-generating activities include hiring out conference centre facilities, sale of publications and entrance fees.
Revenue from such services rendered is recognised in the surplus or deficit in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at balance date.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has elected
to present one statement.

NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – The amended standard requires additional disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value measurements related to all financial instruments recognised and measured
at fair value are to be disclosed by source of inputs using a three level fair value hierarchy, by class.

• The Winton Bear deposit

NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – The amendment to NZ IAS 39 clarifies how the
principles underlying hedge accounting should be applied when:
(i) a one-sided risk in a hedged item is being hedged and
(ii) inflation in a financial hedged item existed or was likely to exist.

• Accounting Standards Review Board.

The following accounting standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective:

The Winton Bear deposit was a donation from the late Mr Winton Bear. The interest earned on the deposit must be used
to promote taxation education, including updating taxation material contained in NZICA’s library.

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – This standard is part of the IASB’s project to replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The standard applies to financial assets, their classification and measurement.
All financial assets are required to be classified on the basis of the entity’s business model.
Other than those mentioned above there are no other new standards or interpretations that are expected to have a
significant impact on NZICA’s financial statements.

OTHER FUNDING
The Group received funding for specific activities from the following sources:

The Accounting Standards Review Board provides funding to assist in the development of New Zealand accounting
standards by the Financial Reporting Standards Board. This funding is recognised by the Group as services are delivered
as specified in the service agreement.
DONATED SERVICES RECOGNITION
The work of NZICA is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Due to the difficulty in determining their
value with sufficient reliability, donated services are not recognised in these financial statements.
(s) Expense recognition
OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit over the lease term as an integral part of the
total lease expense.
(t) Cash flow hedges
NZICA may from time-to-time elect to hedge highly probable foreign currency denominated expenses which are payable
in future accounting periods. The financial instruments used for hedging consist of foreign currency bank balances and
are initially valued at fair value and subsequently revalued at the market rates prevailing at balance date and the resulting
gain or loss is reflected in the cash flow hedge reserve within members’ funds, to the extent that the hedge is effective
and is a designated hedging relationship. To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognised
in the surplus or deficit.
If a hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is otherwise terminated then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity remains there until
the forecast transaction occurs.
(u) Capital management
NZICA’s capital is its members’ funds, which comprise accumulated surpluses. NZICA manages its revenues, expenses,
assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current
and future interests of our members. Members’ funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings. NZICA has no externally imposed capital
management requirements.

(w) Financial instruments
Investments and financial assets in the scope of NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
categorised as either financial assets at fair value through the surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, or available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Designation is re-evaluated at each financial year end, but there are restrictions on reclassifying to
other categories.
When financial assets are initially recognised, they are measured at fair value. If financial instruments are not subsequently
measured at fair value, they are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION
All normal purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that NZICA commits
to purchase the asset. Normal purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require
delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial
assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets has expired or been transferred.
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
surplus or deficit when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired. These are included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12 months after balance date, which are classified as non-current.
(x) Comparative information
In note 18 – Reconciliation of the surplus for the period with net cash flows from operating activities – comparative
items of $689,000 in the Parent and Group previously classified as movements in working capital are now described as
investing/financing activities.
The reason for the reclassification is to remove the effect of purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets from items of working capital.

(v) New accounting standards and interpretations
The Group has adopt the following standards as of 1 July 2009:

NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – The Statement of Comprehensive Income presents all items of
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

1 Revenue

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

19,620

18,205

19,617

18,203

Directors fees and expenses

290

-

296

18

-

-

4,839

4,962

Office bearers’ honoraria

189

192

189

192

Professional development

3,452

3,799

3,452

3,799

Impairment of trade receivables (bad and doubtful debts)

182

192

182

192

Practice review fees

1,614

1,734

1,614

1,734

Fees paid to auditor for other services (professional
development course presentation and other)

164

122

164

122

Journal revenue

644

810

644

810

Audit fees (for the audit of the financial statements)

71

81

81

96

Partnership Programme and sponsorship

583

662

583

662

Recovery of provisions

16

(143)

-

(143)

-

Publications

365

563

365

563

Increase in refurbishment and premises provision

16

-

215

-

215

Interest income

423

904

612

1,125

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) on overseas translations

80

(73)

80

(73)

Dividend received

500

200

-

-

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

61

-

61

-

1,476

1,815

1,573

1,912

9

5

9

5

28,677

28,692

33,299

33,770

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

11,284

10,621

12,001

11,335

(22)

30

(22)

30

11,262

10,651

11,979

11,365

Subscription and application fees
Professional competency course fees

Other

2 Employee benefits
Salaries
(Decrease)/increase in employee benefit provisions
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3 Other expenses include the following items:

Donations

Note

7
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

4 Income tax expense

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

5 Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances

Current tax

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

240

288

309

392

Current year (benefit)/expense

-

-

-

-

Call deposits

2,585

2,002

3,012

2,508

Total current tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

-

-

Short-term deposits

1,001

2,009

1,001

2,009

3,826

4,299

4,322

4,909

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates its fair value.
Refer to note 6 for details of restricted funds included within cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred tax
Movements in temporary differences

(4)

2

(4)

2

Adjustments for prior years

4

(227)

4

-

Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense

-

(225)

-

2

Total income tax (benefit)/expense

-

(225)

-

2

6 Cash and cash equivalents and investments

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

Cash and cash equivalents

3,826

4,299

4,322

4,909

Investments

6,088

6,045

6,088

6,045

9,914

10,344

10,410

10,954

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Surplus/(deficit) before income tax

The carrying value of investments approximates its fair value.
$4,600,000 (2009: $4,300,000) of cash and cash equivalents and investments are restricted funds because they are held
on trust for ABEL.
Income derived from the Winton Bear deposit is used to provide tax education, including tax material contained in
NZICA’s library. However, distribution of the capital of $11,000 (2009: $11,000) is restricted.

1,340

(185)

1,568

445

402

(56)

470

133

48

30

48

30

(151)

(60)

(1)

-

(1,150)

(910)

(1,150)

(910)

114

-

114

-

Prepayments

Payment for losses from subsidiary

-

(225)

-

-

Goods and services tax

Losses to be utilised by subsidiary

190

300

-

-

Other receivables

Prima facie income tax using NZICA’s domestic tax
rate of 30% (2009: 30%)
Tax effects of adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses
Non-assessable income
Non-taxable transactions with members
Effect of tax rate change

66

Trade receivables from non-related parties
Receivable from subsidiary and related parties

Dividend receivable

Deferred tax effect of other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax assets not recognised

397

698

369

748

Under/(over) provided in prior periods

150

(2)

150

1

-

(225)

-

2

Total income tax (benefit)/expense

7 Trade and other receivables
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Less: provision for impairment

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

1,045

986

1,046

1,026

42

54

-

4

268

435

497

604

33

66

114

156

222

316

222

316

-

200

-

-

(370)

(247)

(370)

(247)

1,240

1,810

1,509

1,859

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates its fair value. The calculation of the provision for impairment
has been based on analysis of NZICA’s losses in previous periods and review of specific trade and other receivables.
The carrying amount of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, whose terms have been renegotiated,
is nil (2009: $129,000) for the Parent and Group.
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

7 Trade and other receivables continued

10 Property, plant and equipment
Parent and Group

The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows.

Computer
equipment

Equipment
general

Furniture
& fittings

Leasehold
alterations

Motor
vehicle

Total

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

Balance at 1 July 2008

66

2,653

903

661

1,008

-

5,291

Balance at 1 July

(247)

(101)

(247)

(101)

Additions

15

159

102

372

2,325

-

2,973

Additional provisions made during the year

(182)

(192)

(182)

(192)

Disposals

-

(649)

(93)

(15)

-

-

(757)

59

46

59

46

Written off

-

-

(8)

(124)

(796)

-

(928)

Balance at 30 June 2009

81

2,163

904

894

2,537

-

6,579

(370)

(247)

(370)

(247)
Balance at 1 July 2009

81

2,163

904

894

2,537

-

6,579

Additions

15

518

469

946

1,790

21

3,759

Disposals

-

(318)

(140)

(441)

(110)

-

(1,009)

96

2,363

1,233

1,399

4,217

21

9,329

Balance at 1 July 2008

(11)

(2,360)

(796)

(532)

(630)

-

(4,329)

Depreciation charge for the year

(11)

(236)

(88)

(31)

(86)

-

(452)

Disposals

-

651

94

14

-

-

759

Written off

-

-

6

70

611

-

687

Balance at 30 June 2009

(22)

(1,945)

(784)

(479)

(105)

-

(3,335)

Balance at 1 July 2009

(22)

(1,945)

(784)

(479)

(105)

-

(3,335)

-

-

(1)

(2)

(21)

-

(24)

(15)

(229)

(90)

(99)

(216)

(2)

(651)

Disposals

-

317

140

395

101

-

953

Written off

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(37)

(1,857)

(735)

(185)

(241)

(2)

(3,057)

At 1 July 2008

55

293

107

129

378

-

962

At 30 June 2009

59

218

120

415

2,432

-

3,244

At 1 July 2009

59

218

120

415

2,432

-

3,244

At 30 June 2010

59

506

498

1,214

3,976

19

6,272

Provision used during the year
Balance at 30 June

8 Income tax receivable

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

297

294

332

386

Resident withholding tax paid

-

3

5

38

Provisional tax paid

4

-

-

-

(298)

-

(328)

(92)

3

297

9

332

Prior year income tax receivable brought forward

Refunds received

9 Inventories

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

Books and periodicals

5

54

15

54

Training material

-

-

-

18

NZICA branded merchandise

-

3

-

3

5

57

15

75

In 2010, the cost of inventories sold recognised in operating expenses for the Parent and Group amounted to $70,000
(2009: $241,000) and the write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to $27,000 (2009: $53,000).
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Cost

Balance at 30 June 2010
Depreciation and
impairment losses

Adjustment for write offs
provided in the year ending
30 June 2009
Depreciation charge for the year

Balance at 30 June 2010
Carrying amounts
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

10 Property, plant and equipment continued
NZICA relocated its Auckland office premises in July 2010. Prior to 30 June 2010 NZICA had incurred fit out costs for
leasehold alterations to the new premises of $573,000, computer equipment of $49,000, furniture & fittings of $323,000
and office equipment of $176,000, which are included in the table above.
Property, plant and equipment installed on the existing Auckland premises at 30 June 2010 with a net book value of
$83,000 with no recoverable value on relocation have been written off during the year. In 2009 $241,000 was written off
in relation to the move of national office premises.
ABEL have the use of certain assets owned by the Parent and are charged a management fee for their use. The depreciation
charges above include amounts charged to the subsidiary for assets owned by NZICA.

11 Intangible assets

Parent

Group

Software

Development
costs

Total

Software

Development
costs

Total

1,533

-

1,533

1,642

178

1,820

Additions

207

-

207

207

19

226

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2009

1,740

-

1,740

1,849

197

2,046

Balance at 1 July 2009

1,740

-

1,740

1,849

197

2,046

Additions

648

-

648

648

33

681

Disposals

(818)

-

(818)

(818)

-

(818)

Balance at 30 June 2010

1,570

-

1,570

1,679

230

1,909

(1,295)

-

(1,295)

(1,404)

(100)

(1,504)

(204)

-

(204)

(204)

(40)

(244)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2009

(1,499)

-

(1,499)

(1,608)

(140)

(1,748)

Balance at 1 July 2009

(1,499)

-

(1,499)

(1,608)

(140)

(1,748)

(201)

-

(201)

(201)

(51)

(252)

818

-

818

818

-

818

(882)

-

(882)

(991)

(191)

(1,182)

At 1 July 2008

238

-

238

238

78

316

At 30 June 2009

241

-

241

241

57

298

At 1 July 2009

241

-

241

241

57

298

At 30 June 2010

688

-

688

688

39

727

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2008

Amortisation and
impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2008
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals

Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2010

Carrying amounts
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

12 Investment in subsidiary

14 Employee benefits

NZICA has the following investment in its subsidiary.

Advanced Business Education Limited (ABEL)

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

16

22

16

22

Current

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

250

250

Liability for annual leave

500

516

500

516

250

250

Payroll accrual

465

340

465

340

981

878

981

878

25

23

25

23

25

23

25

23

NZICA holds a 100% shareholding in its subsidiary which is domiciled in New Zealand. The principal activity of ABEL
is to provide NZICA’s requirements for the development and assessment of professional competence for those seeking
membership of NZICA’s colleges.

Liability for long service leave

Non-current
Liability for long service leave

13 Trade and other payables and liabilities

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

Current
Trade payables to non-related parties

350

313

630

785

Deferred lease incentives

67

-

67

-

Payable to related parties

31

48

31

48

2,231

2,079

2,286

2,079

2,679

2,440

3,014

2,912

Accrued expenses

The non-current portion of the long service leave liability is calculated based on NZICA’s estimate of the value of the
unvested liability at the end of the vesting period discounted by an appropriate discount rate. The current portion of the
long service leave liability represents the actual value of the liability that has already vested valued at current pay rates.

15 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
a) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following.
Parent and Group

Non-current
Deferred lease incentives

769

-

769

-

769

-

769

-

Trade and other payables and liabilities are non-interest bearing. The carrying value of trade and other payables
approximates their fair value.
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Net tax asset/(liability)

Assets

Liabilities

Net

2010

2009

2010

2009

2010

2009

-

-

-

-

-

-

Movements in temporary differences during the year were:
Parent and Group

Balance
1 July 2008

Recognised
in surplus
or deficit

Balance
30 June
2009

Recognised
in surplus
or deficit

Balance
30 June
2010

-

-

-

-

-
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

15 Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued

16 Provisions

b) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Refurbishment
provision

Premises
provision

Total
provisions

241

-

241

39

176

215

Balance at 30 June 2009

280

176

456

280

176

456

-

-

-

280

176

456

Provisions used during the year

(137)

(176)

(313)

Recovery of provisions

(143)

-

(143)

Balance at 30 June 2010

-

-

-

Current

-

-

-

Non-current

-

-

-

Movements in unrecognised deferred tax assets during the year were:
Parent

Deductible temporary
differences
Tax losses

Group

Deductible temporary
differences
Tax losses

Balance at 1 July 2008

Balance
1 July 08

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in equity

Balance
30 June 09

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in equity

Balance
30 June 10

77

77

2

156

(68)

-

88

504

621

-

1,125

465

-

1,590

Current

581

698

2

1,281

397

-

1,678

Non-current

Balance
1 July 08

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in equity

Balance
30 June 09

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in equity

Balance
30 June 10

77

127

2

206

(96)

-

110

504

621

-

1,125

465

-

1,590

581

748

2

1,331

369

-

1,700

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of $293,000 (2009: $520,000) and unutilised losses of
$5,679,000 (2009: $3,750,000) for the Parent have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of recoverability.
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of $366,000 (2009: $687,000) and unutilised losses of
$5,679,000 (2009: $3,750,000) for the Group have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of recoverability.

Parent and Group

Provisions made during the year

Balance at 1 July 2009

Refurbishment provision
During the year NZICA refurbished the premises it occupied at 30 June 2009 upon exiting the lease. The unused portion
of the provision was released to the surplus or deficit for the year.
Premises provision
NZICA relocated its national office premises in August 2009 but was liable for rent on its former premises until
December 2009. NZICA provided for the rent expense from departure until the lease termination date. The amount
provided was used to offset actual refurbishment costs incurred and the remainder was released to the surplus
or deficit.
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

17 Members’ funds

18 Reconciliation of the surplus for the period with net cash flows from operating activities

NZICA members’ funds
NZICA members’ funds represents accumulated surpluses retained by NZICA.
Special interest groups’ funds
Special Interest Group (SIG) activities and related revenue and expenditure are recorded in the surplus or deficit.
Qualifying surpluses or deficits are transferred to SIG funds in the Statement of Financial Position. These SIG funds
represent unspent funds contributed by members of these groups, and are to be specifically used for SIG activities.
Cash flow hedge reserve
In the year ending 30 June 2009, NZICA hedged its highly probable foreign currency denominated expenses, which fell
due in the year ending 30 June 2010, by purchasing the equivalent value of foreign currency funds. These expenses were
subscriptions of international accounting bodies and overseas branch operating expenses. The outcome of the cash flow
hedging for the year ending 30 June 2009 was that a loss of $23,000 for the Parent and Group was transferred from the
surplus or deficit for the year to the cash flow hedge reserve, this being the effective portion of the cash flow. The forecasted
transactions have now occurred and the cash flow hedge has been released to the surplus or deficit for the current year.

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

1,340

40

1,568

443

(500)

(200)

-

-

46

(689)

246

(689)

853

656

903

696

59

46

59

46

123

146

123

146

Assets written off

83

241

83

241

Inventories written down

27

53

27

53

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

61

-

61

-

-

200

-

-

386

(548)

167

(340)

25

(1)

33

(9)

1,008

(74)

871

215

105

118

105

118

(190)

500

72

762

Decrease/(increase) in income tax

294

(3)

323

57

(Decrease)/increase in provisions

(456)

215

(456)

215

Net movement in working capital

1,172

207

1,115

1,018

Net cash inflow from operating activities

3,264

700

4,185

1,954

Surplus after income tax
Adjusted for:
Dividend income classified as investing activities
Items classified as investing/financing activities

Add back non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad debts written off
Change in doubtful debts

Non-cash dividend

Movements in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables and liabilities
Increase in employee benefits
(Decrease)/increase in income in advance
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

in thousands of New Zealand dollars

19 Operating leases

20 Financial instruments continued

Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

Less than one year

1,659

1,059

1,680

1,077

Between one and five years

6,274

5,283

6,282

5,309

11,414

5,312

11,414

5,312

19,347

11,654

19,376

11,698

More than five years

NZICA leases premises and a franking machine under operating leases. The premises leases typically run for a period
of 10 years and the franking machine lease runs for a period of 4 years, with options to renew. In the case of leased
premises, lease payments are increased periodically to reflect market rentals. No leases include contingent rentals.
During the year ended 30 June 2010, $1,426,000 (Parent) and $1,527,000 (Group) was recognised as an expense in the
surplus or deficit in respect of operating leases (2009: $938,000 (Parent) and $1,055,000 (Group)).
20 Financial instruments
Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

3,826

4,299

4,322

4,909

675

739

676

779

42

54

-

4

222

316

222

316

-

200

-

-

6,088

6,045

6,088

6,045

10,853

11,653

11,308

12,053

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables from non-related parties
Receivable from subsidiary and related parties
Other receivables
Dividend receivable
Investments
Total loans and receivables

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade and related party payables

78

381

361

661

833

Funds held on deposit for subsidiary

4,600

4,300

-

-

Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

4,981

4,661

661

833
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The carrying value of financial instruments approximates their fair value.
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange risks arise in the normal course of NZICA’s operations.
Management carefully manages such risks in order to minimise any losses that could adversely impact on the Group
financial results, as detailed below.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to NZICA, causing NZICA to incur a loss. The
financial instruments, which potentially subject NZICA to credit risk, consist principally of cash and cash equivalents,
investments and trade and other receivables.
In the normal course of business, NZICA incurs credit risk from trade and other receivables and transactions with banking
institutions. NZICA manages its exposure to credit risk by:
•  only holding bank balances and short-term deposits with New Zealand and offshore registered banking institutions and
•  maintaining credit control procedures over trade and other receivables.
The maximum exposure at balance date is equal to the total amount of cash and cash equivalents, investments and
trade and other receivables disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position. Trade and other receivables considered
uncollectible have been written off and doubtful debts have been adequately provided for. NZICA has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. NZICA does not require any collateral or security to support financial instruments and other
debts it holds, due to the low risk associated with the realisation of these instruments.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that NZICA will not have sufficient liquid funds to meet its commitments as they fall due. Liquidity
risk management is achieved by forecasting and monitoring cash flows on a daily basis. The tenure of investments is
managed to ensure that funds mature in appropriate timeframes to maintain operational liquidity.
All trade and related party liabilities are contractually repayable within 30 days.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of NZICA’s investments will fluctuate due to changes in interest rates. Interest
rate risk is managed by limiting investments to short-term deposits held until maturity. The interest rate risk associated
with such deposits is considered minimal. NZICA has no borrowings and accordingly no interest rate risk on liabilities.
Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. NZICA’s branches in the United Kingdom and Australia operate separate
bank accounts in local currency. NZICA incurs foreign exchange risk as a result of the conversion of foreign currency
balances held in these bank accounts to New Zealand dollars at balance date. The foreign exchange risk associated with
these balances is considered minimal and therefore NZICA does not hedge this foreign currency exposure.
Cash flow hedges
Cash flows from the cash flow hedges have occurred and affect the surplus or deficit during the current financial year.
The effect has been to release the cash flow hedge reserve from the year ending 30 June 2009 to the surplus or deficit
for the current year. Hedge accounting was not used prior to the year ending 30 June 2009.
Sensitivity analysis
In managing interest rate risk the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on the Group’s earnings by
entering into fixed interest rate deposits. The Group also maintains call accounts with variable interest rates. At year end,
a movement up or down of one percentage point in interest rates would affect the Group’s surplus and members’ funds
by up or down $104,000 (2009: $109,000) (Parent: $99,000; 2009: $103,000).
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20 Financial instruments continued

20 Financial instruments continued

NZICA operates branches in the United Kingdom and Australia and a movement of one percentage point in the value of
the New Zealand dollar against the respective foreign currencies would have minimal impact on the Group’s surplus and
members’ funds for the 2009 and 2010 financial years.
Quantitative disclosures
As at 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009, all overdue receivables have been assessed for impairment and appropriate
provisions applied. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The status of
receivables at the reporting date is as follows:
2010
Parent

Impairment

Net

Gross

Impairment

Net

Not past due

398

-

398

377

-

377

Past due 1-30 days

211

-

211

80

-

80

Past due 31-60 days

65

-

65

87

-

87

Past due 61-180 days

116

(115)

1

122

(41)

81

Past due 181-365 days

66

(66)

-

136

(68)

68

189

(189)

-

184

(138)

46

1,045

(370)

675

986

(247)

739

2010
Group

Parent and Group

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Short-term deposits

-

1,001

-

Long-term deposits

-

6,088

-

2009

Gross

Impairment

Net

Gross

Impairment

Net

Not past due

399

-

399

397

-

397

Past due 1-30 days

211

-

211

100

-

100

Past due 31-60 days

65

-

65

87

-

87

Past due 61-180 days

116

(115)

1

122

(41)

81

Past due 181-365 days

66

(66)

-

136

(68)

68

189

(189)

-

184

(138)

46

1,046

(370)

676

1,026

(247)

779

Past due more than 1 year

Level 3 – Fair value is calculated using inputs that are not based on observable market data. Financial instruments
under this hierarchy are valued under valuation techniques where the prices are not based on observable market
data and unobservable market data and unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instruments’ valuation.
Financial instruments under this category are valued and based on quoted prices from similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.
Comparatives are not required to be disclosed for the fair value hierarchy note in the first year of application of
amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: disclosures.

2009

Gross

Past due more than 1 year

instruments in markets are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair value instruments are calculated using the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy is as follows.
Level 1 – Fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments. Quoted prices in an
active market are actual and regularly occurring market transactions for financial instruments and the prices of those
transactions are readily and regularly available.
Level 2 – Fair value is calculated using inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). Financial instruments under this hierarchy
are fair valued using quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar
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21 Related parties

21 Related parties continued

a) Identity of related parties
NZICA has a related party relationship with its Board members; its subsidiary ABEL; the V E A Halligan Memorial Trust
and its Executive Management.

Parent 2010 Parent 2009

Group 2009

Graham Crombie (Partner and Chief Executive Officer
of Polson Higgs)

b) Related party transactions

Board
The following were members of the Board during the year:
Dinu Harry (President)
Elizabeth Hickey**
Ross Jackson (Vice President)
Murray Jack**
Linda Turner*
Doug McKay**
Graham Crombie**
Allan Newman**

Group 2010

Paid to Polson Higgs:
Professional development fees

142

393

142

393

58

-

58

-

-

72

-

72

8

44

8

44

Board Director fees

28

-

28

-

Amount owing at year end

3

-

3

-

Board Director fees

28

-

28

-

Ross Jackson (Partner in McCulloch & Partners)

Practice reviewer fees

53

-

53

-

Paid to McCulloch & Partners:

Presenter fees

8

-

8

-

3

-

3

-

6

-

6

-

35

-

35

-

2

-

2

-

3

-

3

-

Craig Norgate**
Neil Paviour-Smith**
Hugh Rennie**

Board Chairman fees
Honorarium as Office Bearer

* Term completed in December 2009
**Term commenced July 2009

Amount owing at year end

Transactions between NZICA and members of the Board were as follows.

Elizabeth Hickey

Parent 2010 Parent 2009

Group 2010

Group 2009

Dinu Harry (Director of Bertelsen Harry Waters Limited)
Paid to Bertelsen Harry Waters Limited:
Honorarium as Office Bearer

91

23

91

23
Murray Jack (Chief Executive of Deloitte)

Received from Bertelsen Harry Waters Limited:
Practice review fees

Honorarium as Office Bearer

Paid to Elizabeth Hickey:

-

26

5

8

-

26

5

8

Paid to Deloitte:

Amount owing at year end
Received from Deloitte:
Sponsorship

Linda Turner (Head of School, Business, Eastern
Institute of Technology)
Paid to Linda Turner:
Honorarium as Office Bearer

65

78

65

78

Paid to WYMAC Consulting Limited:

Paid to Eastern Institute of Technology:
Honorarium as Office Bearer

Doug McKay (Director and shareholder in WYMAC
Consulting Limited)

10

10

10

10

Board Director fees
Presenter fees
Amount owing at year end
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21 Related parties continued

21 Related parties continued
Parent 2010 Parent 2009

Group 2010

Group 2009

Allan Newman

Fred Hutchings (Partner in PricewaterhouseCoopers)

Paid to Allan Newman:

Paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers:

Group 2010

Group 2009

Board Director fees

28

-

28

-

Professional development fees

-

37

-

37

Amount owing at year end

3

-

3

-

Room hire/catering/advertising

-

19

-

19

Technical reviewer fees

-

13

-

13

-

4

-

4

Craig Norgate (Director of MCN Rural
Investments Limited)

Amount owing at year end

All transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis. Outstanding balances at year end are unsecured, interest free
and settlement occurs in cash. No debts have been written off in relation to these related parties during the year.

Paid to MCN Rural Investments Limited:
Board Director fees

31

-

31

-

Amount owing at year end

3

-

3

-

Board Director fees

28

-

28

-

Amount owing at year end

3

-

3

-

Neil Paviour-Smith
Paid to Neil Paviour-Smith:

Paid to Hugh Rennie:
Board Director fees

31

-

31

-

Amount owing at year end

5

-

5

-

2

-

2

-

Received from Hugh Rennie:
Room hire/catering

V E A Halligan Memorial Trust
The Group acts as the trustee of the V E A Halligan Memorial Trust (the Trust). The primary purpose of the Trust is to
provide an annual grant to promote the quality, expertise and education of accountants ordinarily resident in Canterbury
other than for the purpose of studying.
The Group has not entered into any transactions with the Trust.

Short-term employee benefits
Termination benefits
Post employment benefits
Long-term employee benefits

Laurie Jordan (Director of Jordan Horton & Co Limited)
Received from Jordan Horton & Co Limited:
Practice review fees receivable at year end

ABEL
During the year NZICA paid certain expenses on behalf of ABEL, which were subsequently reimbursed. The total amount
of the transactions for the year ended 30 June 2010 with the subsidiary was $668,000 (2009: $695,000).
The amount remaining to be reimbursed at 30 June 2010 was $42,000 (2009: $50,000) which has been included in trade
and other receivables. The subsidiary also declared a dividend of $500,000 to the Parent during the year (2009: $200,000).
NZICA held funds on deposit for ABEL as at 30 June 2010, totalling $4,600,000 (2009: $4,300,000).

Executive Management
Key management compensations were as follows.

Hugh Rennie

84

Parent 2010 Parent 2009

-
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4

-

4

Parent
2010

Parent
2009

Group
2010

Group
2009

1,798

1,274

2,044

1,536

141

23

141

23

23

12

28

17

-

-

6

6

1,962

1,309

2,219

1,582

The composition of key management has changed with three additional roles included in 2009–10 compared to
2008–09. Termination benefits were paid to key management that are no longer employed by NZICA.
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22 Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities for the Parent or Group at 30 June 2010 (2009: nil).

Independent Auditor's Report

23 Contingent assets
There are no contingent assets for the Parent or Group at 30 June 2010 (2009: nil).

Report on the Financial Statements

24 Capital commitments
The Parent and Group had capital commitments, related to the fit out of its new premises, of $1,260,000 (including
GST) at 30 June 2010 (2009: $432,000). At 30 June 2010 NZICA had signed a new lease agreement for premises.
25 Subsequent events
There are no significant events subsequent to balance date.
26 Accounting estimates and judgements
Information on significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies which
have the most significant effect in the preparation of these financial statements are included in the following notes.
• Note 4 – income tax expense
NZICA carries on taxable and non-taxable activities. Estimates and judgements have been used by management in
preparing an allocation of income and expenditure to taxable or non-taxable activities to determine the tax loss for
the income year.
• Note 7 – trade and other receivables
Management apply judgement in assessing the carrying value of trade and other receivables. Receivables are
considered impaired when they exceed 90 days unless extended payment terms have been agreed. The calculation
of the provision has been based on a review of specific trade and other receivables.
• Note 13 – trade and other payables and liabilities
Deferred lease incentives have been spread over the likely term that national office and Auckland premises will be
occupied. Management’s estimate as to how long the lease terms will be has been used in determining the terms
over which to spread the incentives.
• Note 14 – employee benefits
The value of employee benefits involves judgement in assessing the non-current portion of the long service leave
liability. Estimates used in calculating this liability are: the estimated increase in annual salaries; probability of
employees reaching the vesting period; and the appropriate discount factor to apply in determining the present
value of the liability. These estimates have been based on historical human resource information for NZICA
and current economic data.
Management have discussed the development, selection, application and disclosure of NZICA’s critical accounting
policies and estimates with the Audit, Finance and Risk Management Committee.

To the Members of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (“NZICA”)
We have audited the financial statements of NZICA and its subsidiary (together “the Group”) on pages 53 to 86
which comprise the statement of financial position of NZICA and Group as at 30 June 2010, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in members’ funds and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
This report is made solely to the NZICA’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Rules of the New Zealand
Institute of Chartered Accountants. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to NZICA’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than NZICA and NZICA’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and that fairly present the matters to which they relate, and for such internal
control as the Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These auditing standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial
statements that fairly present the matters to which they relate in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Certain partners of Ernst & Young have presented for NZICA during the year and preside on various boards and
committees of NZICA.
In addition to this, partners and employees of our firm may deal with NZICA and Group on normal terms within the
ordinary course of trading activities of NZICA and Group.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 53 to 86:
►

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and

►

fairly present the financial position of NZICA and Group as at 30 June 2010 and their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended.

11 October 2010
Wellington
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